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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2008

The Durectors present thewr annual report together with the audited financial statements of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2008

Principal activities
The Company’s principal activities during 2008 were the provision of consumer credit to non-standard customers
and motor finance services

Business review
The Directors are very disappointed to report a loss in the year before tax of £746 4 muillion (2007 restated
pre tax loss £95 0 milhion)

During 2008, the Company comprised Welcome Finance (Welcome) and Shopacheck, the Company’s non-
standard consumer lending businesses, and Welcome Car Finance, a car retail operation, which was closed in
Aprtl 2009 as a result of funding constraints  The main cause of the large loss reported in the 2008 results 1s the
significant increase 1n loan loss provisions The loan loss charge increased to £0 8 lllion (2007 restated £0 4
billion), total customers’ net loans and recewvables were £2 3 billion (2007 restated £2 3 billion} Our current
estimate of the fair value of Welcome’s loans and recervables 1s £1 5 billion at 31 December 2008, which 1s
calculated by discounting expected future cash flows from the loans and recervables Loans and receivables have
continued to impair post year end as the business 1s 1n run-off

Details of sigmificant events since the balance sheet date are contained 1n note 27 to the financial statements and
this report below

Overview of events during 2009

On 20 February 2009, Cattles ple {Cattles), the ultimate parent of the Company, announced a delay in the release
of the Group’s 2008 Prelimmary Results This announcement marked the beginming of a process, including the
Impairment Review and the Forensic Review, which led to the discovery of a very sigmficant shortfall in the
Company’s impairment provisions  As a result of the circumstances surrounding tins very material under-
impairment, on 30 June 2009 a number of Cattles executive Directors and other senior executives of the
Company were dismissed

The events which unfolded after 20 February also led the Cattles Board to the inevitable conclusion that Cattles
was 1n breach of covenants under its borrowing arrangements Cattles’ financial creditors therefore had the right
to demand immediate repayment of their loans A decision was taken not to continue lending to Welcome
customers (other than on a mimimal renewal basis) during 2009 Instead, a great deal of ime and energy was
spent 1n stabilising the Cattles Group (the Group) so that it could negotiate and obtain a standstill agreement with
its key financial creditors

As part of the process of obtaining the Group’s creditors’ agreement to the standstill, Cattles was required to
make an announcement of its 2008 results on 25 November 2009 These numbers, which were unaudited and
described as being subject to matenal change, showed a very substantial loss for the Group for the year ended
31 December 2008 This announcement represented the best estimate of the likely result at that time and
reflected the impact ef the Impairment Review, which 1s described 1n more detail below

During the second half of 2009, a thorough analysis of the Group’s businesses was undertaken This analysis led
the Cattles Board to recommend that there should be no further lending in Welcome and that instead the book
should be collected out This conclusion was announced to Cattles’ shareholders on 16 December 2009

The Impairment Review

In February 2009, as soon as it became clear that there was an 1ssue with the Company’s impairment provision,
the Audit Committees comrmussioned Deloutte LLP (Deloitte) to conduct an independent review of the
Company’s impairment policies and their application i the Company’s accounts (the Impairment Review)
Deloitie were mstructed to assist the Audit Commuttees to estabhish the quantum of the impairment provision
Deloitte’s principal finding was that, as a result of a breakdown n internal controls, the Company’s impairment
policies had been incorrectly applied This resulted in impairment provisions bemg matenally understated and
profits matenally overstated




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

The Forensic Review

In addition to the Imparrment Review, the Audit Committees commissioned an independent forensic review (the
Forensic Review) which was carmed out by Freshfields Bruckhaus Dermger LLP (Freshfields) with the
assistance of Deloitte The predominant reason for the Forensic Review was to enable the Audit Commuttees to
assess and take legal advice on hiability and related 1ssues The Audit Commuttees also thought the Forensic
Review was important for a number of other reasons

e to enable the Group to understand what happened and to take steps to ensure 1t could not happen again,

* 1o enable the Group to identify any individuals who either posed a nisk to the Group or who were
otherwise culpable in what had happened, and to determine what action should be taken against
individual employees, and

* 10 be able to give an independent account of the matter to the Financial Services Authority (FSA) and
any other interested regulatory bodtes

Results of the Forensic Review

The Forensic Review demonstrated that certain of the former executive Directors of Cattles and certain of the
former senior executives of the Company, over a period of time, had provided incomplete and misleading
information and documents and/or failed to escalate matters of concern relating to impairment to the full Boards
and Audit Comrmuttees of Cattles and the Company The provision of such mcomplete and misleading
formation and documents to the full Boards and Audit Comnuitees, in conjunction with the withholding of
certain other information and documents, combined to mask the true state of Welcome’s loan book and, in
particular, the correct level of arrears within that book

Notwithstanding the Group’s and Company’s reported strong record of growth with stable credit quality and
strong earnings performance, the non-executive Directors had regularly chatlenged certain executives about key
matters such as the level of cash being generated by the business, the quality of the rapidly expanding loan book
and the adequacy of the loan loss provision

In response to these challenges, certain executives had provided a range of presentations, documents and verbal
reassurances to the non-executive Directors that everything was entirely as it should have been and that there was
no reason for concern  In addition to this robust and consistent reassurance from such executives, the Audit
Commuittees regularly sought and recerved reassurances on a number of matters, including specific assurance
about the adequacy of the loan provision, from the external Auditers to the Company’s accounts at that time

Action taken immediately following the conclusion of the Forensic Review

As a result of the Forensic Review, as Cattles announced on 1 July 2009, the employment of each of the six
senior executives who had been suspended pending the final outcome of the review was terminated with
immediate effect and the Group Treasury & Rusk Director left Cattles, also with immediate effect None of the
departing executives received any compensation for loss of office

The following changes were made to the operating structure of the Group and to the composition of the Cattles
and Company Boards

¢  Margaret Young was appointed Executive Chairman of Cattles with immediate effect, supported in this
role by Robert East {(Chief Restructuning Officer) and James Drummond Smith (Finance Director),

e the Board of the Company was also restructured, with the appointment of Laura Barlow as Executive
Chairman in an intenim capacity and Paul Mackin as Managing Director The Risk and Comphiance
function was strengthened with a number of external senior appointments Laura Barlow left the
business at the end of January 2010 at which time Margaret Young became Executive Chairman of the
Company and David Lovett joined the Board on 25 February 2010, and

+  the Board focussed on a programme of action to stabilise the financial position including a controlled
process of debt recovery and cash collection and the stmphfication of operating models to reduce costs




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

Going concern

On 25 November 2009, the Company’s ultimate parent Company, Cattles’ announced that 1t had agreed a
Standstill and Equalisation Agreement (SEA) with 1ts key financial creditors, and that this should improve the
likelihood of Cattles achieving its restructuring objectives, namely

& to stabilise the financial position of Cattles and its subsidiaries, and
+ agamnst this background, to continue discussions with Cattles’ key financial creditors with a view to
agreeing a consensual restructuring of the Group

Further details of the SEA are set out 1n note 27 to the financial statements

The Company, together with other members of the Group has 1ssued guarantees to 1ts bank and notcholder
creditors Cattles, the Company and other members of the Cattles group do not anticipate that the key financial
creditors will demand repayment from Cattles, the Company or other members of the Cattles group because the
key financial creditors have agreed in the SEA not to do so while the agreement continues

Cattles and the Company are engaged n discussions with their key financial creditors and others 1n order to
progress proposals for a consensual restructuring of the Group While these discussions are progressing, a
material uncertainty exists as to their outcome The complexity and number of 15sues on which 1t 1s necessary to
reach agreement, the interests which must be taken into account in doing so and the number of stakeholders with
whom those agreements are necessary make achieving a consensual restructurning uncertain  However, the
Directors presently believe that a reasonable prospect of restructuring so as to avord isolvent hiquidation exists
The Directors’ belief 1s primanly based on the level of support that continues to be provided by the financial
creditors of the Group and the progress being made with them and others n furtherance of the achievement of a
consensual restructuring  However, as these discussions are ongoimng there 1s material uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concem

In addition, the Directors continue to believe the Company will not cease trading 1in the foreseeable future, as 1t
continues to collect out 1ts customers’” loans, with Shopacheck continuing to trade as normal

The Company owes an inter-company liability to Cattles of £2 9 billlon  However, Cattles is also party to the
standstill contained within the SEA and Cattles has agreed not to demand repayment of the inter-company
lability while the SEA continues Therefore the position 15 as descnibed for the guarantee beneficianes above n
that the Company does not currently anticipate that the inter-company liability will be demanded

After making enquines regarding the circumstances outlined above, the Directors have concluded that there s
a reasonable expectation that the Company can continue to pay 1ts operational debts as they fall due for the
foreseeable future (taking 1nto account the expectations of the Company in relation to the guarantees and the
mter-company hability, as well as the ongoing discussions with key financial creditors, as referred to above)
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concem basss 1n preparing the financial statements The
financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Company were unable to continue
as a going concern

Finanacial risk management
Information about the use of financial instruments by the Company 1s given in note 24 to the financial statements

Dividends

The Directors do not recommend the payment of an ordinary dividend (2007 £m1l) or dividends on the “A”
preference shares, the “B” preference shares and the wredeemable preference shares (2007 £5,777, £14,441 and
£8,045,632 respectively)




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

Durectors
The Directors of the Company dunng the year and up 1o the date of signmmg the financial statements were

M A Young (appointed 1 October 2008)

L Barlow {(appointed 23 October 2009, resigned 31 January 2010)
I R Drummond Smuth (appointed 27 April 2009)

J P Mackin (appointed 25 June 2009)

F R Dee (appointed 1 October 2008)

D Lovett (appointed 25 February 2010)

D A Haxby (appointed 1 October 2008, resigned 9 Apnl 2009)

A J McWalter (appointed ! October 2008, resigned 9 April 2009)
D J Postings (appomted t October 2008, resigned 30 June 2009)
N N Broadhurst (appointed 1 October 2008, resigned 30 June 2009)
M W G Collins (apponted 1 October 2008, removed 3 July 2009)
¥ J Corr (appomted 1 October 2008, removed 3 July 2009)

I S Cummine (removed 3 July 2009)

T Blake (resigned 1 October 2008)

A Curry (resigned 1 October 2008)

A C Cummings (resigned 1 October 2008)

P S Wood (resigned 1 October 2008)

P D Miller (resigned 1 Qctober 2008)

M A Belcher (resigned 1 October 2008)

L A Calver (resigned 1 October 2008)

Statement of Directors’ responsibihities
The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the Financial Statements 1n accordance with
applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year Under that law the
Durectors have prepared the financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union The financial statements are required by law to give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the profit or loss of the Company for that period

In preparing those financial statements, the Directors are required to

select switable accounting policies and then apply them consistently,

make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent,

state that the financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union, and
prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis, unless 1 1s inappropnate to presume that
the Company wili continue 1n business

The Directors confirm that they have complied with the above requirements in preparning the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for keepig proper accounting records that disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 1985 They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence
for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregulanties

Legstation 1n the United Kingdom governing the preparation and disserunation of financial statements may
differ from tegislation in other jurisdictions

Directors’ indemmties

The Company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its Directors which remamn
n force at the date of this report Directors serving as Directors of the Company’s ultimate parent, Cattles, are
also indemnified by the provisions made by Cattles




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Directors’ report for the year ended 31 December 2008 (continued)

Employment policy

The Company gives sympathetic consideration to apphcations for employment from disabled persons wherever
practicable Successful applicants and employees who become disabled are given appropriate assistance and
training and have the same career and promotion prospects as other employees

Employee involvement

The Directors believe in encouraging the interest and involvement of employees by making them more aware of
performance at both local and Group level Many employees are able to earn bonus payments based on the
performance of their individual branch or division

In addiuion, due to active in-house training programmes and formal mechamisms for regularty bnefing staff,
groups of employees are able to meet on a regular basis to discuss future developments, exchange 1deas and
provide feedback to management

Supplier payment policy and practice

It 1s the Company’s policy that payments to suppliers are made in accordance with those terms and conditions
agreed between the Company and 1ts suppliers when a binding purchase contract 1s entered into, provided that all
trading terms and conditions have been complied with  The trade creditor days figure has not been stated as the
measure 1s not constdered to be approprate to the business

Auditor
Each of the persons who 1s a Director at the date of approval of this annual report confirms that

« 5o far as the Director 15 aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company's auditor 1s
unaware, and

s the Director has taken all the steps that he / she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make

himself / herself aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the Company’s Auditor 1s
aware of that information

This confirmation 1s given and should be interpreted i accordance with the provisions of s234ZA of the
Companies Act 1985

Subsequent to the year end, PnicewaterhouseCoopers LLP restgned as Audrtors and were replaced by Grant
Thomton UK LLP The Company has passed an elective resolution to dispense with the obligation to reappoint
Auditors annually

By order of the Board

M@/

R C W Todd
Secretary

11 May 2010

Registered number 133540




Independent Auditor’s report to the members of
Welcome Financial Services Limited

We have audited the financial statements of Welcome Financial Services Limited for the year ended 31
December 2008 (the 'financial statements') which compnise the income statement, the balance sheet, the
statement of changes in equity, the cash flow statement, the statement of accounting policies and notes 1 to 27
These financial statements have been prepared under the accounting policies set out therein

Thus report 1s made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Section 235 of the
Companies Act 1985 Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members
those matters we are required to state to them 1n an auditor's report and for no other purpose To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the
company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed

Respective responsibihties of Directors and Auditors

The Directors' responsibilities for prepaning the annual report and the financial statements 1n accordance with
United Kingdom law and International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) are set cut 1n the Statement of
Directors' Responsibilities

Our responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance with relevant legal and regulatory
requirements and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland)

We report to you our opimion as to whether the financial statements give a true and far view and are properly
prepared 1n accordance with the Companies Act 1985 We also report to you whether in our opinion the
mnformation given m the Directors' Report 1s consistent with the financial statements In addition we report to
you If, in our opinion, the Company has not kept proper accounting records, 1f we have not received all the
mformation and explanations we require for our audit, or 1f information specified by law regarding Directors'
remuneration and other transactions 1s not disclosed

We read other information contained n the Annual Report and consider whether 1t 1s consistent with the audited
financial staternents  The other information comprises only the Directors' Report We consider the implications
for our report 1f we become aware of any apparent misstatements or matertal mconsistencies with the financial
statements Our responsibilities do not extend to any other information

Basis of audit opinion

We conducted our audit in agcordance with Internattonal Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) 1ssued by the
Auditing Practices Board An audst includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the amounts
and disclosures 1n the financial statements It also mcludes an assessment of the sigmficant estimates and
Judgements made by the Directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether the accounting
policies are appropnate to the Company's circumstances, consistently applied and adequately disclosed

We planned and performed our audst so as to obtain all the information and explanations which we
considered necessary in order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable assurance that the
financial statements are free from matenal misstatement, whether caused by fraud or other rregulanty or
error In forming our opinion we also evaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation of information 1n
the financial statements

Opimon
In our opimicn

+ the financial statements give a true and fair view, 1n accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union, of the state of the Company's affairs as at 31 December 2008 and of 1ts loss for the
year then ended,

e the financial statements have been properly prepared n accordance with the Compamies Act 1985, and
¢ the information given in the Directors' Report 15 consistent with the financial statements




Independent Auditor’s report to the members of
Welcome Financial Services Limited (continued)

Emphasis of matter - Going concern

In forming our opimion, which 1s not qualified, we have considered the adequacy of the disclosure made in
statement of accounting policies and note 27 to the financial statements concerning the Company’s ability to
continue as a goIng concem

As explained in the statement of accounting policies and note 27 to the financial statements, the Company is
reliant on the continuing support of 1ts key financial creditors and others to achieve a consensual restructuring
of the Cattles group This condition, along with other matters disclosed 1n the statement of accounting policies
and note 27 to the financial statements indicate the existence of a matenal uncertainty, which may cast
significant doubt about the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern The financial statements do not
include the adjustments that would result if the Company were unable to continue as a going concern

Gt Thomon UK LLP Gmu{’(ﬁmﬁw DE (L.

Registered Auditor
Chartered Accountants

London, United Kingdom

11 May 2010




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Income statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

Restated
2008 2007
Notes £000 £°000
Interest income 538,446 569,006
Fee and related income 149,424 165,764
Revenue from sale of goods 110,179 110,530
Other operating mcome 1,572 9,662
Revenue 799,621 854,962
Interest expense 3 168,744 147,478
Purchase of goods 67,079 67,977
Loan loss charge 12 791,741 413,273
Staff costs 4 131,765 122,876
Other operating expenses 244,740 198,333
Impairment of intra-group loans and receivables 141,984 -
Loss before taxation (746,432) (94,975)
Taxation 8 (38,239 1,023
Loss for the year attributable to equity holders of (784,671) (93,952)

the Company

Restated analysis details are provided 1n note 2

10




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Balance sheet as at 31 December 2008

Restated
2008 2007
Notes £000 £7000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Goodwill 9 - -
Other intangible assets 10 1,136 5,827
Property, plant and equipment 11 14,792 11,818
Loans and recervables 12 1,066,625 1,519,666
Deferred tax assets 13 - 3,017
1,082,553 1,540,328
Current assets
Inventones 6,999 12,591
Loans and recervables 12 1,198,209 913,906
Current tax assets 84,237 76,415
Trade and other recervables 14 9,663 36,814
Cash and cash equivalents 18,421 11,240
1,317,529 1,050,966
Total assets 2,400,082 2,591,294
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Bormowings 15 2,970,014 2,456,220
Trade and other payables 16 41,506 41,832
Deferred income 33,083 27,544
Provisions 17 16,478 -
3,061,081 2,525,556
Non-current habilities
Borrowings 15 7,889 5,783
Trade and other payables 16 - 7,414
Preference shares 19 36,009 36,009
Deferred income 29,449 45,800
Provisions 17 79,633 -
152,980 95,006
Total habilities 3.214,061 2,620,602
Net habilities (813,979) (29,308)
SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital 19 100,005 100,005
Retamed earmnings (913,984) (129,313)
Total equity (813,979) (29,308)

Restated analysis details are provided 1n note 2

The finangs)! stat@ments were approved by the Board of Directors on 11 May 2010 and signed on 1ts behalf by

JR mmond Smith
Director

Registered number 133540
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of changes in equity for the year ended 31 December 2008

Share Retamed Total

capital earmngs equity

£7000 £000 £°000

At 1 January 2007 - restated 100,005 (37,449) 62,556
Loss for the year — restated - {93,952) {93,952}
Share-based payments - 1,895 1,895
Tax on share-based payments - 193 193
At 1 January 2003 100,005 (129,313) (29,308)
Loss for the year - (784,671) (784,671)
At 31 December 2008 100,005 (913,984) (813,979)

Restated analysis details are provided 1n note 2

12



Welcome Financial Services Limited

Cash flow statement for the year ended 31 December 2008

2008 2007
Notes £000 £000
Cash flows from operating activities
Cash outflow from operations 21 (548,493) {518,620)
Tax pad (43,044) (35,396)
Net cash outflow from operating activities (591,537) (554,016)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (1,307) (1,918)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 819 1,024
Purchase of intangible assets (14,797) (20,657)
Net cash outflow from investing activities (15,285) (21,551)
Cash flows from financing activities
New intra-group borrowings 624,106 588,016
Repayment of external borrowings (5917) (4,950)
Net cash inflow from financing activities 618,189 583,066
Net increase in eash and cash equivalents 11,367 7,499
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1,283 (6,216)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 12,650 1,283
For the purposes of the cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents compnrise:
Cash and bank balances 18,421 11,240
Bank overdrafts 15 (5,771) {9,957
12,650 1,283

13



Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies

General information

Welcome Financial Services Limited (the Company) 1s a Company incorporated 1n the United Kingdom The
address of the registered office 15 given on page 2 The nature of the Company’s operations 15 set out 1n the
Directors’ Report

Statement of comphiance

These financial statements have been prepared 1n accordance with EU [FRS and IFRIC interpretations 1ssued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) These financial statements have also been prepared in
accordance with the Compantes Act 1985 as applicable to companies reporting under [FRS

Basis of preparation
The financial statements are prepared on the going concern basis and under the histonical cost convention and in
Pounds Sterling, the Company’s functional and presentational currency

Gomg concern

The Company, together with other members of the Group, has i1ssued guarantees to 1ts bank and noteholder
creditors Cattles, the Company and other members of the Cattles group do not anticipate that the key financial
creditors will demand repayment from Cattles, the Company or other members of the Cattles group because the
key financial creditors have agreed in the SEA not to do so while the agreement continues

Cattles and the Company are engaged 1n discussions with their key financial creditors and others in order to
progress proposals for a consensual restructuring of the Group While these discussions are progressing, a
material uncertainty exists as to their outcome The complexity and number of 1ssues on which 1t ts necessary to
reach agreement, the interests which must be taken into account in doing so and the number of stakeholders
with whom those agreements are necessary make achieving a consensual restructuring uncertain  However, the
Directors presently believe that a reasonable prospect of restructuring so as to avord nsolvent hiquidation exists
The Durectors’ belief 1s primarily based on the level of support that continues to be provided by the financial
creditors of the Group and the progress being made with them and others 1n furtherance of the achievement of a
consensual restructuning  However, as these discussions are ongoing there 1s matenal uncertainty that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a gomng concern

In addition, the Directors continue to believe the Company will not cease trading tn the foreseeable future, as 1t
continues to collect out 1ts customers’ loans, with Shopacheck continuing to trade as normal

The Company owes an inter-company hability to Cattles of £2 9 bithon However, Cattles 1s also party to the
standstifl contained within the SEA and Cattles has agreed not to demand repayment of the iter-company
hability while the SEA continues Therefore the position 1s as descnbed for the guarantee beneficiaries above in
that the Company does not currently anticipate that the inter-company hability will be demanded

After making enquines regarding the circumstances outhned above, the Directors have concluded that there 1s
a reasonable expectation that the Company can continue to pay its operational debts as they fall due for the
foreseeable future (taking into account the expectations of the Company in relation to the guarantees and the
inter-company habihty, as well as the ongoing discussions with key financial creditors, as referred to above)
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the gowng concern basis in prepanng the financial statements The
financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result 1f the Company were unable to continue
as a going concern

The accounting polictes set out below have been apphed consistently to all years presented 1n these financial
statements While the accounting policies have been appled consistently, the comparative figures have been
restated A summary of the prior period adjustments 1s provided n note 2




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Accountmng developments

Interpretations effective mn 2008 but which had no impact

The following interpretations to existing standards are mandatory for accounting pertods beginning on or after 1
March 2007 or later penods, but they have had no impact on the Group or the Company

. IFRIC 11 ‘IFRS 2 — Group and treasury share transactions’, provides guidance on whether share-based
transactions involving treasury shares or involving Group entities (for example, options over a parent
Company’s shares) should be accounted for as equity-settled or cash-settied share-based payment
transactions in the stand-alone accounts of the parent and subsidiary companies This interpretation does
not have an impact on the Group’s financial statements as the Company’s accounting policy for share-
based compensation arrangements already comply with this interpretation

. IFRIC 12 “Services concession arrangements’ and IFRIC 13 ‘Customer loyalty programmes’ are not
relevant to the Group’s operations

Interpretation which has been early adopted
The following interpretation to an existing standard 1s mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1
January 2009 or later periods The Group and Company have early adopted this interpretation

. IFRIC 14 ‘IAS 19 — The hmit on a defined benefit asset, mimimum funding requirements’, provides
guidance on assessing the limit under IAS 19 on the amount of the pension surplus that can be recogmsed
as an asset and on how the pension asset or hability may be further affected by a statutory or contractual
munimum funding requirement This interpretation does not have any impact on the Group or the
Company’s financial statements as the defined benefit scheme of the Group and Company 1s in a deficat
position and the mimimum funding requirement that 15 1n place does not give nise to an additional hiability

Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for
accounting periods beginning on or afier 1 January 2009 or later periods, which are relevant to the Group’s
operations, but which the Group and the Company have not early adopted

e [FRS 8 ‘Operating segments’ (effective from | January 2009) This new standard, which replaces IAS 14
‘Segment reporting’, requires a ‘management approach’, under which segment information 1s presented on
the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes It 1s not expected that this standard will
significantly impact on the Group’s segmental disclosures

» ]AS 23 (amendment) ‘Borrowing costs’ (effective from 1| Januvary 2009) It is not expected that this
amendment will have an impact on the Group or Company’s result as the Group’s existing accounting
policy requires that borrowing costs relating to assets 1n the course of development are capitahsed as part
of the asset’s costs rather than expensed

. 1AS 1 (revised) 'Presentation of financial statements' (effective from 1 January 2009) The revised
standard will prohibit the presentation of items of income and expenses (that 1s, '‘non-owner changes n
equity’) 1n the statement of changes in equity, requiring non-owner changes 1n equity to be presented
separately from owner changes in equity All non-owner changes in equity will be required to be shown in
a performance statement, but entities can choose whether to present one performance statement (the
statement of comprehensive income) or two statements (the income statement and statement of
comprehensive ncome) The Group and Company will apply IAS 1 (revised) from 1 January 2009,
subject to endorsement by the EU Tt 1s likely that both the income statement and statement of
comprehensive income will be presented as performance statements

» IFRS 2 (amendment) ‘Share-based payment’ (effective from 1 January 2009} This amendment deals with
vesting conditions and cancellations It clanfies that vesting conditions are service conditiens and
performance conditions only, and that other features of a share-based payment are not vesting conditions
These features would need to be included 1n the grant date fair value for transactions with employees and
others providing similar services, they would not impact the number of awards expected to vest or
valuation thereof subsequent to grant date All cancellations, whether by the entity or by other parties,
should receive the same accounting treatment  The Group and Company wilt apply IFRS 2 (amendment)
from 1 January 2009 It 1s not expected to have a material impact on the Group or Company’s financial
statements
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Standards and amendments that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted (continued)

IFRS 1 (amendment) First ime adoption of IFRS' and 1AS 27 (amendment) ‘Consolidated and separate
financial statements' (effective from 1 January 2009) The IAS 27 amendment relates to the treatment of
dividends as income It will not have any impact on the Group’s financial statements The IFRS 1
amendment will not have an impact on the Company’s financial statements which are already prepared
under IFRS

IFRS 3 (revised) ‘Business combinations' (effective from 1 July 2009) The revised standard continues to
apply the acquisition method to business combinations, with some sigmficant changes For example, all
payments to purchase a business are to be recorded at fair value at the acquisition date, with contingent
payments classified as debt subsequently re-measured through the income statement There 1s a choice on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis to measure the non-controlling interest 1n the acquiree erther at fair
value or at the nen-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquiree’s net assets  All acquisition-
related costs should be expensed The Group will apply IFRS 3 (revised) prospectively to all business
combinations from | January 2010, subject to endorsement by the EU

IFRS 5 (amendment) 'Non-current assets held-for-sale and discontinued operations’ (and consequential
amendment 10 [FRS | 'First-time adoption®) (effective from 1 July 2009) The amendment clanfies that all
of a subsidiary’'s assets and liabilities are classified as held-for-sale 1f a partial disposal sale plan results 1
loss of control Relevant disclosure should be made for this subsidiary 1f the definition of a discontinued
operation 1s met A consequential amendment to IFRS 1 states that these amendments are apphed
prospectively from the date of transition to IFRS The Group will apply the IFRS 5 (amendment)
prospectively to all partial disposals of subsidianes from 1 January 2010, subject to endorsement by the EU

TAS 23 (amendment) 'Borrowing costs' (effective from 1 January 2009) The defimtion of borrowing costs
has been amended so that interest expense 1s calculated using the effective interest method defined 1n IAS
39 'Financial instruments Recogmtion and measurement’ This eliminates the mconsistency of terms
between 1AS 39 and 1AS 23 The Group and Company will apply the IAS 23 (amendment) prospectively
to the capitahsation of borrowing costs on qualifying assets from 1 January 2009 and 1t 1s not expected to
have a material impact on the Group or Company’s financial statements

TAS 36 (amendment) 'Impairment of assets' (effective from 1 January 2009) Where fair value less costs to
setl 1s calculated on the basis of discounted cash flows, disclosures equivalent to those for value 1 use
calculation should be made The Group and Company will apply the IAS 36 (amendment) and provide the
required disclosure where applicable for impairment tests from 1 January 2009, subject to endersement by
the EU

IAS 38 (amendment) 'Intangible assets’ (effective from 1 January 2009) A prepayment may only be
recognised in the event that payment has been made 1n advance of obtaining rnight of access to goods or
receipt of services  The Group and Company will apply the IAS 38 (amendment) from 1 January 2009,
subject to endorsement by the EU, and 1t 1s not expected to have a matenal impact on the Group or
Company’s financial statements

IAS 19 (amendment) 'Employee benefits' (effective from 1 January 2009) The most sigmificant changes
arising from the amendment are as follows

{1) A plan amendment that results 1n a change n the extent to which benefit promises are affected by
future salary increases 1s a curtailment, while an amendment that changes benefits attributable to
past service gives rise to a negative past service cost if it results in a reduction 1n the present value
of the defined benefit obligation, and

(1) The defimtion of return on plan assets has been amended to state that plan admimstration costs are
deducted in the calculation of return on plan assets only to the extent that such costs have been
excluded from measurement of the defined benefit obligation

The Company will apply the IAS 19 (amendment) from 1 January 2009, subject to endorsement by the EU, and
1t 15 not expected to have an impact on the Group or Company’s financial statements

-

IFRS 9 (effective 1 January 2013, not yet endorsed by the EU) The Board has not yet assessed the impact
IFRS 9 will have on these financial statements
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition
Revenue comprises the fair value recervable for the sale of goods and services, net of value-added tax, and 1s
recognised as follows

a) Interest Income

Interest income 15 recognised 1n the income statement for all financial assets measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method The effective mterest method 1s a method of calculating the amortised cost of a
financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant penod The effective interest rate (EIR) 1s
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the expected life, or contractual term 1f
shorter, of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset When calculating the EIR, the
Company estimates cash flows considening all contractual terms of the financial instruments, such as early
settlement options, but does not include an expectation for future credit losses The calculation includes all fees
charged to customers, such as acceptance or simular fees, payment protection insurance commissions, and direct
and incremental transaction costs, such as broker commissions

Amounts due from lessees under hire purchase contracts are recorded as receivables at the amount of the
Company’s net investment 1n the contract Finance income 1s allocated to accounting periods so as to reflect a
constant periodic rate of return on the Company’s net investment (before tax) cutstanding 1n respect of the
contract

b)  Fee and related income

The Company offered payment protection and other insurance products, such as health, life and mechanical
breakdown 1nsurance, to 1ts customers for which a commission was received from third party fronting insurers
Income from commussion and profit share arrangements, 1n respect of payment protection insurance, 1s
recognised on an effective interest method over the term of the policy The effective interest method reflects the
provision of service under the policy, as the Company bears the imsurance nsk  Commission received for
brokering the sale of other mmsurance products, for which the Company does not bear any underlying insurance
nisk, 1s recogmised and credited to the income statement when the brokerage service has been provided

9] Revenue from sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods, principally vehicles, 15 recognised when the Company has delivered the
product to the customer and the customer has accepted the product and collectability of the related receivable 1s
reasonably assured

d) Other operating income

Other operating income primarily comprises comrmussion charged to clients for the collection of debts and fees
charged for marketing insurance products These commissions and fees are credited to the income statement
when the service has been provided
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Interest expense
Interest expense primanly compnses the expense arising on the Company’s borrowings from the ultimate parent
Company, which 1s recogmised on an effective interest method

Financial assets

Management determines the classification of the Company’s financial assets at initial recogmtion mnto one of the
following categonies, loans and recervables, held-to-maturity financial assets, available-for-sale financial assets
and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and re-evaluates this designation at each reporting date

Loans and recetvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted 1n an active market They anse when the Company provides money directly to a customer with no
mntention of trading the receivable This classification includes advances made to customers under hire purchase
agreements and purchased debt

Loans and recervables are recognised when ¢ash 15 advanced to borrowers, or at the date of acquisition in
respect of purchased debt These assets are imtially recognised at fair value plus direct and incremental
transaction costs Loans and receivables are subsequently carned at amortised cost using the effective interest
method

The Company has not held any held-to-matunty, available-for-sale financial assets or financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss at any point dunng the year

Financial assets are derecogmsed when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired or
where the Company has transferred substantially all the nsks and rewards of ownership

Impairment of loans and recervables

In respect of loans and receirvables, including recervables under hire purchase contracts, the Company assesses
on an ongoing basis whether there 1s objective evidence that a loan asset or a group of loan assets 1s impaired
A loan asset or a group of loan assets 15 impaired and impairment losses are mcurred only 1f there 15 objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the imitial recognition of the asset
(2 loss event) and the loss event will have an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the foan asset or
group of loan assets and can be rehably estimated

For the purposes of evaluating the degree of impairment, loan assets are grouped on the basis of similar credat
risk charactenstics Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such
assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the
assets being evaluated Future cash flows for a group of loan assets are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets and historical loss experience for assets with credit nsk characteristics ssmilar to those
in the group Historical loss experience 1s adjusted on the basis of current observable data to reflect the effects
of current conditions that did not affect the period on which the histonical loss experience 15 based and to
remove the effects of conditions in the histoncal pened that do not exist currently

Objective evidence of impairment occurs after a customer misses one contractual payment Impairment 1s
increased by reference to the level of contractual arrears on a customer account as follows

a} Incurred but not reported (IBNR)
Where accounts less than 120 days in arrears have mussed one contractual payment they are subject to an
impairment charge calculated on the basis of expected future cashflows excluding future credit losses

b} 120 days contractual arrears

At 120 days contractual arrears the relationship with the customer 1s judged to have broken down and loans are
subyect to an impairment chatge on the basts of expected future cashflows The credit losses are deemed to be
fully incurred at this point
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Welcome Financial Services Limited

Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of loans and receivables (continued)

The IBNR was first established at 31 December 2008 following a review by the Board whilst assessing the
change m economic circumstances It has not been practicably possible without the use of hindsight, to
calculate the amount of IBNR required as at 31 December 2007

Home collect accounts are reviewed based upon recent cash collection performance and an impairment
provision 1s made where future expected cash flows are lower than the carrying value of the loan

If there 15 objective evidence that a loss event has occurred, the amount of the loss 1s measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows, exciuding future
credit losses that have not been incurred, discounted at the Ioan asset’s original EIR  The carrying amount of
the asset 15 reduced through the use of a loan loss provision  The amount of the loss 15 recognssed in the ncome
statement as a loan loss charge

Loans and recervables (and the related loan loss provision) arc normally wrtten off when there 1s nio realistic
prospect of recovery of these amounts

Renegotiated loans

Loans whose terms are contractually renegotiated are no longer regarded as past due or impaired and are
disclosed as new loans In subsequent years the loan 1s considered to be past due only if further performance
18sues anse, based on the new contractual terms  For renegotiated loans, unpairment 1s calcutated on the basis
of expected future cash flows from the renegotiated loan

Staff costs

a)  Short-term benefits

Wages, salaries, commissions, bonuses, social security contributions, paid annual leave and non-monetary
benefits, including the cost of providing company cars and death-in-service prermiums, are accrued i the period
m which the associated services are rendered by employees of the Company

b}  Pension obligations

The Company 1s a member of the Cattles Group, which operates both a defined benefit and a number of
defined contribution pension plans  The Company provides no other post-retirement benefits to its employees,
including Directors

There 1s no contractual agreement or stated policy 1n place for charging the net expense of the defined benefit
plan as a whole to the participating Group companies Consequently, the net defined benefit expense and the
retirement benefit obligation are recognised in full by the plan’s sponsoring employer, Cattles, the Company’s
ultimate parent The Company, and other participating members, recognise a pension expense equal to their
proportion of contributions payable for the period

For defined contribution plans, the Company pays contributions nto privately admmistered pension plans on a
contractual basts The contributions are recognised as a staff cost as they fall due

¢}  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated before the normal retirement date, or when an
employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these benefits The Company recognises termination
benefits when 1t 1s demonstrably committed to either the termination of employment or a voluntary redundancy
offer
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Staff costs (continued)

d) Share-based payments

The Company 1s a member of Cattles Group which operates a number of equity-settled share-based payment
plans In respect of share awards granted after 7 November 2002 (and not vested by 1 January 2005), in
accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’, an expense 1s recogmsed 1n respect of the fair value of
employee services received 1n exchange for the grant of shares or share options A corresponding amount 1s
recorded as an increase 1n equity within retained earmmings  The expense 15 spread over any relevant vesting
period and 13 calculated by reference to the fair value of the shares or share options granted, excluding the effect
of any non-market vesting conditions

When the Company’s ultimate parent, Cattles, in whose shares the share-based payment awards are made,
grants new share options as consideration for the cancellation or settlement of an old grant, these are 1dentsfied
as replacements for the cancelled share options and are accounted for as a modification in accordance with [FRS
2 Therefore, the onginal fair value 1n relation to the cancelled share options continues to be recognised as an
expense over the onginal vesting penod, together waith an eapense for the incremental fawr value being
recogmsed over the vesting period of the replacement share options  The incremental fair value 15 calculated as
the difference between the fair value of the replacement share options and the net fair value of the cancelled
share options at the date the replacement share options were granted

Cattles does not make a recharge to the Company for the cost of the awards granted to its employees

In armving at fair values, the Black-Scholes pricing model 1s used and various assumptions are made, for
example, on expected forfeiture rates, dividend yields, share price volatility and risk free rates The estimate for
the number of options that are expected to become exercisable 1s revised at each balance sheet date  Any impact
from the revision of onginal estimates 1s recogmsed in the income statement over the remaining vesting penod

Tax

The current tax charge or credit 1s calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date Management periodically evaluates posittons taken n tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulation 1s subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropniate on
the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax authonities

Deferred tax 1s provided in full, using the habihty method, on temporary differences anising between the tax
bases of assets and habilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements Deferred tax 1s recogmised
in the income statement, except to the extent that 1t relates to items recognised directly 1n equity, in which case
1t 1s recognised in equity

Deferred tax 1s determined using tax rates and laws that have been substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date and are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset 15 reahised or the deferred tax hiability 1s
settled

Deferred tax assets are recogmsed to the extent that it 1s probable that future taxable profit will be available
agamst which the temporary differences can be utilised

Cash and cash equivalents
For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents includes cash and bank balances and
bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in the balance sheet

Intangible assets

a) Goodwill

Goodwill ansing on acquisition represents the excess of the cost of a business combination over the fair values
of the Company’s share of the 1dentifiable net assets acquired  Goodwill s not amortised, but 1s reviewed at
least annually for impairment For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill 1s allocated to cash generating
units

Any impairment 1s recogmised immediately through the income statement within other operating expenses and 15
not subsequently reversed

On disposal of a business, the attributable amount of goodwill 1s included n the determination of the profit or
loss on disposal
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Intangible assets (continued)

b}  Computer software

Acquired software licences are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and any impairment loss  Cost
represents expenditure that 1s directly attnibutable to the purchase of the licence The licences are amortised over
their useful hives (3 to 7 years) on a straight line basis The amortisation charge 15 recogmsed within other
operating expenses

Costs that are directly associated with the creation of identifiable software, which meet the development asset
recognition criteria as lard out 1n IAS 38 ‘Intangible assets’, are recogmised as internally generated intangible
assets Durect costs include the employment costs of internal software developers, consultancy costs and
borrowing costs Borrowing costs are capitalised until such time as the internally generated software 15
substantially ready for its intended use

Computer software development costs recognised as assets are amortised over their estimated useful lives
(3-7 years) on a straight line basis The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each balance sheet date

All other software development, which does not meet the asset recognition criteria of IAS 38, and maintenance
costs are recogmused as an expense as incurred within other operating expenses

Any impairment 1s recognised immediately through the income statement within other operating expenses

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment 1s stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Cost represents expenditure that
1s directly attributable 1o the purchase of the asset  Certain land and buildings are held at previous revalued
amounts less subsequent accumulated depreciation as these amounts were taken as their deemed cost as at the
date of transition to IFRS (1 January 2004) in accordance with the exemption under I[FRS 1 ‘First-adoption of
International Financial Reporting Standards”

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recogmised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it 1s probable that future economic benefits associated with the items will flow to the Company and
the cost of the item can be measured rehably

Land 1s not depreciated Depreciation on other assets 1s calculated using the straight hne method to allocate the
costs less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows

Freehold buildings 2%pa

Leasehold buildings 2%to20%pa

Fixtures and office equipment 10%to 20%pa

Computer hardware Shotter of 20% to 33'4% p a or the lease term
Motor vehicles Shorter of 20% p 2 or the lease term

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Leasing — as lessee

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company has substantially all the nsks and rewards of
ownership are classified as firance leases Assets held under finance leases or hire purchase contracts are
capitalised on inception of the agreement at an amount equal to their fair value or, 1f lower, the present value of
the mmimum lease payments The interest element of the lease cost 1s charged to the income statement, within
other operating expenses, over the lease penod so as to produce a constant periedic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the hability for each period

Property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases or hire purchase contracts are depreciated over the
shorter of the period of the agreement and the estimated useful lives of the assets

Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as operating
leases Payments made under operating leases, net of any incentives received from the lessor, are charged to the
income statement, within other operating expenses or staff costs (in the case of company cars), on a straight line
basis over the penod of the lease

The obhgations outstanding under finance leases and hire purchase contracts are included within other hiabilities
1 the balance sheet

Leasing — as lessor

Advances made to customers under hire purchase agreements whereby the Company conveys the right to use
assets over a period of time 1n exchange for payment, substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are
retained by the Company

Under such agreements the present value of the lease payment 15 recogmised 1n loans and receivables Income
15 recognised over the term of the lease using the net investment method 1n 1nterest income

Inventories

Inventories comprise vehicles held for resale and are stated at the lower of actual cost and net realisable value
Net realisable value 1s the estimated selling price 1n the ordinary course of business less variable selling
expenses

Trade and other receivables
Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment

A provision for impairment of trade and other recervables 1s established when there 15 objective evidence that
the Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the oniginal terms of the receivables  The
amount of the provision is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the original EIR  The carrying amount of the asset 1s reduced through the use
of an allowance account, and the amount of the loss 15 recognised in the mcome statement
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Statement of accounting policies (continued)

Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Company’s assets, other than loans and receivables, inventones and deferred tax
assets, are reviewed at ¢ach balance sheet date to determine whether there 1s any indication of impairment 1If
any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount 15 estimated

The recoverable amount of the Company’s receivables 1s calculated as the present value of expected future cash
flows, discounted at the onginal EIR inherent in the asset Receivables with a short duration are not discounted
Further details on the impairment policy 1n relation to the Group’s loan portfolio are set out 1n the accounting
policy Impairment of loans and receivables

The recoverable amount of other assets 1s the greater of their net selling price and value 1n use In assessing
value 1n use, the expected future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the ume value of money and the risks specific to the asset For an
asset that does not generate largely independent cash inflows, the recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which thc asset belongs An impawment loss is recogmsed whenever the carrying amount of an asset or
1ts CGU exceeds 1ts recoverable amount Impairment losses are recognised 1n the income statement

A previously recogmised impairment loss 15 reversed 1f there has been a change 1n the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount, however not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined, net of amortisation or depreciation, i1f no impairment loss had been recognised 1n prior years

Preference shares
The Company’s preference shares are recognised as financial habiliies The dividends attached to these shares
are non-diseretionary and cumulative, and, therefore, give nise to a confractual obligation on the Company

Preference shares are initially recognised at fair value, the value of the consideration received less directly
attnibutable transaction costs  After initial recogmition, preference shares are measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method The effective interest method takes into account the estimated future dividend
payments over the expected life of the shares

Preference dividends are recogmsed as an interest expense 1n the period in which the dividend liability falis due

Provisions

Provisions are recogmsed when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, 1t 1s more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the
amount has been reliably measured

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest methed

Equity mstruments

An equity instrument 15 any contract that evidences a residual interest i the assets of the Company after deducting
all of 1ts liabilities  Equity mstruments 1ssued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
transactions costs

Financial habilities

Other financial habihties, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs  Other
financial habilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, with
interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis The effective interest method 15 a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial hability and allocating interest expense over the relevant period  The effective
Interest rate 15 the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the effective life of the
financial liabihity, or, where appropriate a shorter penod

23
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

1  Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets, hiabilities,
income and expenses The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of
making the judgements about the carrying values of assets and habilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongomng basis Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period 1n which the estimate 15 revised 1f the revision affects only that penod, or in the
penod of the reviston and future peniods 1f the revision affects both current and future periods

The following are the critical judgements that the Directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recogrised in the financial statements

Key source of judgement

Loan loss provisioning

Impairment losses are calculated 1n circumstances where a loss event, an impairment tngger, 15 deemed to have
occurred, as described in the statement of accounting polictes The determination of impairment triggers has
been reviewed and remains a key area of management judgement

Key estimates

Loan loss provisioning

In assessing future cash flows for the purposes of assessing impairment, management uses histonic data from
portfolios of sumilar loans The assessment of the applicable range of data to include m the impairment
calculation 1s a key estimate

The degree to which the calculated impairment 1s deemed to be incurred for each delinquency band 1s also a
key estimate

. Incurred losses
Where there 1s objective evidence of impairment, losses should be calculated on the basis of the present value of
future expected cash flows less future credit losses The degree to which a loss 1s meurred 15 a matter of judgement

Impairment losses are only considered to be fully incurred when an account has reached the 120 day arrears
band For accounts which are past due in the arrears bands 30-59 days, 60-89 days, and 90-119 days, a discount
factor 15 applied to the fuil provision calculated on the future expected cashflows to reflect the degree to which
the total estimated final loss 1s incurred at the balance sheet date

If the factors are removed from the 30-59 days, 60-89 days and 90-119 days, then based on management’s
assumptions, the provision would increase by £117 million 1f the losses were only deemed incurred at the 120
day arrears band then the provision would reduce by £105 miilion

. Historical data
The loan book 1n Welcome 15 collectively evaluated for impairment Impairment 15 assessed on the basis of
future cash flows based on the historical performance of assets with similar nsk characteristics

Historical loan performance data has been used which tracks the subsequent cash performance, based on
representative historic data  The historical data 15 reviewed for applicability to the current period

A 10% increase or decrease m actual cash collected against that predicted by histoncal data would result in a
change n loan loss provision of £32 million

Fair value

The fair value of loans and receivables has been calculated by discounting expected future cash flows from the
loans and receivables at the Group’s cost of capital plus the costs of collection at the date balance sheet date Both
the future cash flows and the market rate of interest contain significant estimates A 3% increase in the discount
factor would reduce the value by £0 1 billion

Provisions
The Company recogmsed i 2008, provisions 1n relation to potential future costs ansing as a result of certain
product sales The calculation of the provisions contain significant judgement and estimates
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Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

2 Reconciliation of restatement of prior period errors

Following the events outlined in the business review contained in the Directors” Report, a number of items have
been restated 1n the 31 December 2007 financial statements, details of which are provided 1n the table below

Restatement
As published amount Restated
2007 2007 2007
Note £000 £000 £000
Income statement
Interest income a 665,156 (96,150) 569,006
Fee and related income b 112,242 53,522 165,764
Loan loss charge c 294 373 118,900 413,273
Other operating expenses d 134,936 63,397 198,333
Profit / (loss) before taxation 129,950 (224,925) (94,975)
Taxation e {44,410) 45,433 1,023
Profit / (loss) for the year attributable to
equity holders of the Company 85,540 (179,492) (93,952)
Balance sheet
Goodwill 11,789 (11,789) -
Other mtangible assets d 57,435 (51,608) 5,827
Loans and receivables
Non-current f 1,688,066 (168,400) 1,519,666
Current f 1,032,713 (118,307) 913,906
Current tax assets - 76,415 76,415
Current tax habilities 18,519 (18,519} -
Deferred income
Current h - 27,544 27,544
Non-current - 45,800 45,800
Retained earnings 1 199,701 {329,014) (129,313)

25




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008
(continued)

2 Reconciliation of restatement of prior period errors (continued)

Summary of restatement items

a Interest income

There 15 a requirement under LAS 39 for interest recognised on an effective interest rate basis to be adjusted
where underlying loans become inpaired Interest income has been restated after the carrymg value of loans
was reduced following additional loan loss charges

b Fee and related income
Payment protection insurance commission income has been reclassified from interest income to fee and
related income

c. Loan loss charge

As a described m the Directors’ Report, the Company’s impairment policy had been incorrectly applied This
has resulted in the restatement of the loan loss charge for the year ended 31 December 2007 by £118 9 million
and for the years ended 31 December 2006 and prior, a total of £135 4 mullion of additional provision has been
made to the 1 January 2007 retained earmings The method of calculating the IBNR provision was first
established at 31 December 2008 following a review by the Board while assessing the change in economic
circumstances It has not been practicably possible, without the use of hindsight, to calculate the amount
required at 31 December 2007

d.  Other operating expenses
As a result of the adjusted loss before taxation incurred in 2007, 1t has been necessary to review the carrying
values of the goodwill and the Company’s internal software development (other intangible assets)

e, Taxatien
Tax charges have been restated and agreed with HM Revenue and Customs (HMRC) to reflect the effect of the
increased loan loss charge and other impairment charges

L Loans and recervables

Loans and recervables balances have been restated to reflect the additional loan loss impairment (note ¢ ) and
deferred income (note h') Ths also results in the substantial restatement of the credit risk disclosures outlined
1n note 12

g.  Current tax assets / habihties
The ncreased loan loss charge, an allowable expense for tax purposes, has resulted n the restatement and
recognition of a current tax asset of £76 4 million, which has been subsequently recovered from HMRC

h. Deferred income
Loans and recervables have been grossed up by £73 3 million with the adjustment being shown as
deferred income

i. Retamed earmings
Previously stated retained earmings have been restated to reflect the impact of the above items and the related
tax effect

I It has not been practicably possible, without the use of hindsight, to calculate the amount of impairment
of intra-group loans required at 31 December 2007 (note 12)
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3  Interest expense

2008 2007
£000 £°000
Interest expense on mtra-group borrowings 167,393 139,741
Bank interest 1,160 1,355
Other interest 191 57
Preference share dividends - 6,325
168,744 147,478
The interest expense in relation to preference shares comprised
2008 2007
£000 £'000
“A” preference shares - dividend - 6
“B” preference shares - dividend - 14
Irredeemable preference shares
- reassessment of amortised cost - (1,741)
- dividend - 8,046
- 6,325
4  Staff costs
2008 2007
£000 £7000
Wages and salaries 103,728 93,870
Social secunty costs 12,065 10,770
Penston costs - defined benefit pension scheme (note 22) 1,987 3,091
Pension costs - defined contribution pension schemes (note 22) 986 799
Share-based payments (note 20) - 1,895
Other employee benefits 12,999 12,451
Total staff costs 131,765 122,876

Staff costs include a cost for employee termination benefits of £1 0 mallion (2007 £0 3 milhion) for the

year ended 31 December 2008 Other employee benefits principally compnse the cost of providing

company cars, health insurance and life assurance cover
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4  Staff costs (continued)

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Company (including Directors) during the year was

as follows
2008 2007
Number Number
Branch office staff, agents and other operations staff 4,132 3,792
Central support services 534 475
4,666 4,267
5  Directors’ emoluments
2008 2007
£:000 £'000
Aggregate emoluments 941 1,818
Contnbutions to defined contribution pension schemes 99 115
1,040 1,933
The number of Directors to whom retirement benefits are accruing under pension schemes 1s
Number Number
Under defined benefit scheme 1 1
Under defined contribution scheme 6 6
7 7
The emoluments of the highest paid Director were
£000 £000
Aggregate emoluments 189 393
Contributions to defined contribution pension scheme 25 32
214 425

D J Postings, M W G Collins, J I Corr, 1 S Cumnmine, N N Broadhurst, D A Haxby, A J McWalter, F R Dee and
M A Young received no emoluments 1n respect of their services to the Company during the year
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6  Other operating expenses

Restated

2008 2007

£000 £000

Administrative expenses 28,666 27,973
Occupancy costs 16,920 16,716
Agents’ commission 12,813 13,401
Advertising costs 12,130 11,223
Ccllection costs 6,597 3,911
Mator and travel expenses 5,195 4,188
Impairment of intangible assets 10377 63,397
Depreciation and amortisation costs 16,948 9,645
Provisions costs (note 17) 96,111 -
Other 38,983 47,879
244,740 198,333

Other includes hire purchase interest expense of £0 1 milhion (2007 £0 3 million) and the cost of providing
against mventory of £0 4 milhon (2607 £0 2 million)

7 Auditor’s remuneration

The analysis of Auditor’s remuneration 1s as follows

2008 2007
£000 £°000
Audit Services
Grant Thornton UK LLP 1,200 -
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 353 322
1,553 322

No remuneration paid to either Grant Thormton UK LLP or PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 1n the year related to
non-audit services (2007 Grant Thomton UK LLP £nil, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP £mil)
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8 Taxation

Restated
2008 2007
Analysis of charge in the year: £000 £7000
Current tax
UK corporation tax at 28 5% (2007 30%) (2,747) (3,872)
Adjustments m respect of previous years 37,969 (1,689)
Total current tax charge / (credit) 35,222 (5,561)
Deferred tax
Ongination and reversal of temporary differences - 4,085
Adjustments n respect of previous years 3,017 219
Change 1n tax rate - 234
Total deferred tax charge (note 13) 3,017 4,538
Total tax charge / (credit) in the income statement 38,239 (1,023)
Restated
2008 2007
Current tax on 1items credited to equity* £*000 £000
Relating to share-based payments - (175)
Deferred tax on items debited / (credited) to equity:
Change in tax rate - (18)
Relating to share-based payments - -
- (18)
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8  Taxation (continued)

The rate of tax for the year 15 28 5% (2007 30%) and represents a blended tax rate following the reduction in
the rate of corporation tax from 30% to 28% which was effective from 1 April 2008 Deferred tax has been
recognised at 28 5% The tax charge for the year 1s higher than the tax on loss on ordinary activities at the

standard rate for the reasons set out in the following reconcilhiation

Restated
2008 2007
£000 £000
Loss on ordinary activities before tax (746,432) (94,975)
Tax on loss on ordinary activities at 28 5% (2007 30%) (212,713) (28,502)
Factors affecting the charge / (credit) for the year
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 40,599 9,081
Income not taxable for tax purposes (108) -
Movement in unprovided deferred tax 169,385 18,517
Adjustments to tax charge / (credit) in respect of previous years 40,986 (353)
Effect of gains 90 -
Change in tax rate - 234
Total tax charge / (credit) for the year 38,239 (1,023)
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9 Goodwill

£'000
Cost
At 1 January 2007, 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008 14,737
Accumulated impairment
At 1 January 2007 2,948
Impairment - restated 11,789
At 31 December 2007 - restated and 31 December 2008 14,737
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 -
At 31 December 2007 - restated -
At 1 January 2007 11,789

The recoverable amount of goodwill, before the recognition of impairment losses, was allocated to the consumer
credit cash generating unit (CGU) of which the Company represents the principal part The Company tests
goodwill annuaily for impairment or more frequently if there are indications that goodwill might be impared

The recoverable amount of the CGU 15 determined from value 1n use calculations The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding loan loss rates and direct costs

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the tme
value of money and the nsks of the CGU  Cash flow forecasts have been prepared to reflect the Directors’
current expectation that loan recetvables will be collected out  The cash flows have been discounted using a
pre-tax discount rate of 6 7% (2007 7 9%)

Due to circumstances outlined 1n the Directors” Report the Company has revised tts cash flow forecasts for the
CGU, which has resulted in a value in use estimate of £n1l (2007 restated £nil)
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10 Other intangible assets

Brand name Restated
and Restated Internally

Computer software trademarks Acquired generated Restated

hcense licences software Total

£000 £000 £°000 £°000

Cost
At 1 January 2007 11,640 26,324 30,941 68,905
Additions - 2,601 18,056 20,657
Disposals - (3) - 3
Intra-group transfer - 20 - 20
Reclassifications - (328) 328 -
At 1 Japuary 2008 11,640 28.614 49,325 89,579
Additions - 1,656 13,141 14,797
Dhsposals - (2,015) - (2,015)
At 31 December 2008 11,640 28,255 62,466 162,361
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2007 1,746 16,249 783 18,778
Charge for the year 582 2,219 1,245 4,046
Disposals - 3) - 3)
Impairment 9,312 4,359 47249 60,920
Intra-group transfer - 11 - 11
Reclassifications - (48) 48 -
At 1 January 2008 - restated 11,640 22,787 49,325 83,752
Charge for the year - 1,869 7,008 8,877
Impairment - 4,244 6,133 10,377
Dusposals - (1,781) - (1,781)
At 31 December 2008 11,640 27,119 62,466 101,225
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 - 1,136 - 1,136
At 31 December 2007- restated - 5,827 - 5,827
At 1 January 2007 9,894 10,075 30,158 50,127

Internally generated computer software pnncipally relates to the cost of the development of a customer
relationship management and back-office lending system

The recoverable amount of intangible assets ts determined from value 1n use calculations The key assumptions
for the value 1n use calculations are those regarding discount rates, growth rates and expected changes to loan
loss rates and direct costs The Company tests intangible assets annually for impatrment, or more frequently 1f
there are indications that intangible assets might be impaired

Management estimates discount rates using pre-tax rates that refiect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the nsks specific to the Company’s businesses Changes n loan loss rates and direct costs
are based on historic experience and expectations of short-term future changes 1n the market The Company
prepares a cash flow forecast derived from the approved forecasts for the following three years and
extrapolates these using a long-term growth rate  The cash flows are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate
of 6 7% (2007 7 9%)
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11 Property, plant and equipment

Fixtures,
equipment
Freehold Leasehold and
land and land and computer Motor
buildings buildings hardware vehicles Total
£°000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000
Cost
At 1 January 2007 3,293 9,480 35,499 2,374 50,646
Additions - 758 1,886 3,274 5918
Intra-group transfers - - 6 27 33
Disposals (213) (784) (388) 917) (2,302)
Reclassifications (469) 563 (94) - -
At 1 January 2008 2,611 10,017 36,909 4,758 54,295
Additions - 611 10,554 296 11,461
Disposals (135) - ¢} (1,065) (1,201)
At 31 December 2008 2,476 10,628 47,462 3,989 64,555
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2007 402 6,190 30,280 821 37,693
Charge for the year 40 1,124 4,144 873 6,181
Intra-group transfers - - 4 3 7
IDhsposals (26) (535) (378) (465) (1,404)
Reclassifications (111) 131 (20) - -
At 1 January 2008 305 6,910 34,030 1,232 42,477
Charge for the year 36 1,048 5,801 1,186 2,071
Disposals 31 - - (754) (785)
At 31 December 2008 310 7,958 39,831 1,664 49,763
Net book amount
At 31 December 2008 2,166 2,670 7,631 2,325 14,792
At 31 December 2007 2,306 3,107 2,879 3,526 11,818
At 1 January 2007 2,891 3,290 5,219 1,553 12,953

The net book value of fixtures, equpment and computer hardware, and motor vehicles includes amounts of
£7 2 milhion (2007 £1 3 mulhion) and £2 3 mullion (2007 £3 4 million) respectively, of assets held by the
Company under finance lease and hire purchase contracts The related depreciation charge for these assets
was £4 8 miltion (2007 £1 7 milhon)

Depreciation has been charged to the Company’s income statement through other operating expenses or staff
costs in the case of company cars
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12 Loans and receivables

Restated
2008 2007
£°000 £'000
Loans and receivables 2,264,100 2,324 581
Intra-group receivables 734 108,991
2,264,834 2,433,572

Comprising
Non-current assets 1,066,625 1,519,666
Current assets 1,198,209 913,906
2,264,834 2,433,572

Credit nsk

Credit nisk in relation to loans and receivables 1s the risk that financial loss anses from the failure of a customer
to meet its obligations under a loan agreement The Company has policies and procedures to control and
monttor this risk, which are explained 1 note 24

It has not been practicably possible, without the use of hindsight, to calculate the amount of impairment of ntra-
group loans required at 31 December 2007

Maximum exposure to credit nsk
The maximum exposure to credit risk of the Company’s loans and recervables 1s set out in the table below

Restated

2008 2007

£°000 £°000

Welcome 2,184,279 2,223,272
Shopacheck 79,830 101,309
2,264,100 2,324,581

The estimated fair value of loans and receivables 1s £1 5 billion Fair value has been calculated by discounting
future expected cash flows from the loans and receivables at 10%, being the Group’s cost of capital plus the costs
of collection at the balance sheet daie

Credit quality
A summary of the arrears status of loans and receivables by class i1s shown below as at 31 December 2008 and 2007

2008 Welcome Shopacheck Total

£'000 £000 £°000
Neither past due nor impaired 1,423,252 29,306 1,452,558
Past due 797,093 67,827 864,920
Imparred 1,355,997 65,749 1,421,746
Quistanding customer balance 3,576,342 162,382 3,739,224
Unamortised fees and costs and accrued interest (167,933) (28,567) {196,500)
Gross loans and receivables 3,408,409 134,315 3,542,724
Loan loss proviston (1,224,139) (54,485) (1,278,624)
Total loans and receivables 2,184270 79,830 2,264,100
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12 Loans and receivables (continued)

Restated Restated Restated

2007 Welcome Shopacheck Total

£000 £000 £000

Neither past due nor impaired 1,572,420 32,374 1,604,794

Past due 601,151 71,540 672,691

Impaired 886,729 75,565 962,294

Outstanding customer balance 3,060,300 179,479 3,239,779

Unamortised fees and costs and accrued interest (186,132) (30,199} (216,331)

Gross loans and receivables 2,874,168 149,280 3,023,448

Loan loss provision (650,896) (47,971} (698,867)

Total loans and receivables 2,223,272 101,309 2,324,581
Loans and receivables — past due

Welcome

Restated

2008 2007

£000 £000

Past due up to 29 days 282,391 143,152

Past due 30-59 days 230,465 221,263

Past due 60-89 days 158,755 138,967

Past due 90-§ 19 days 125,482 97,769

797,093 601,151

As at 31 December 2008, the Company had an IBNR provision of £150 million

The above analysis includes loans and receivables that would have been past due or imparred had their terms not
been renegotiated These loans totalled £286 5 mullion and £m1l (2007 £215 2 million and £1 0 million) 1n

respect of Welcome and Shopacheck respectively

Past due balances relate to loans which are contractually overdue  However, contractually overdue loans are not

specifically impaired unless the customer 1s 120 days 1n contractual arrears

Shopacheck receivables, of £67 8 million (2007 £71 5 million) which are classified as past due have not been
analysed mto past due bandings since the collection performance of this type of loan 1s not managed with
reference to the extent of any contractual arrears ansing dunng the entire period of the loan since 1ts inception
Instead, performance 1s managed, and the need for any loan loss provision 1s considered, with reference to the
value of contractual payments received in only the preceding 13-week pernod This approach prohibits any
meamngful disclosure of the ageing of the debt by reference to its contractuat past due status In addition, the
Drirectors consider that this disclosure of the Shopacheck recervables 1s not matenal in the context of the
Company’s total gross loans and recervables of £3 7 billion (2007 £3 2 billion)
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12 Loans and receivables (continued)

Loans and receivables — security type, gross of loan loss charges

2008 Welcome Shopacheck Total
£000 £'000 £°000
Secured 1,300,433 - 1,300,433
Unsecured 1,272,152 162,882 1,435,034
Hire purchase 1,003,757 - 1,003,757
3,576,342 162,882 3,739,224
2007
Secured 975,776 - 975,776
Unsecured 1,090,378 179,479 1,269,857
Hire purchase 994,146 - 994,146
3,060,300 179,479 3,239,779
Collateral

In accordance with IFRS 7 paragraph 37(c), the Company does not fair value the collateral held as secunty n
respect of 1ts secured loan and hire purchase receivables

Secured loans
Secured loans are not underwntten based on equity, but on the customer’s abihity to afford the loan repayments,
with the emphasis placed on assessing and venfying the customer’s incomings and outgoings

Hire purchase

Hire purchase loans are advanced to customers for the purchase of used motor vehicles The terms of the hire
purchase contract allow the customer to voluntarily terminate and allow the Company to repossess the vehicle,
both subject to meeting certain criteria

A customer may voluntarily termmate the hire purchase contract provided they have paid at least 50% of the
contract and have not recesved a notice of default In this instance the vehicle 1s returned to the Company and
disposed of, with the proceeds offset against the customer’s outstanding balance Any remaining balance 1s
written off

Legaily, the Company may repossess a vehicle financed on a hire purchase contract, provided the customer has
paid less than one third of the contract and a notice of default has been 1ssued The Company endeavours to
negotiate arrangements with the customer to avoid the need for repossession  Vehicles that are repossessed are
promptly disposed of at auction and the proceeds offset agamnst the customer’s outstanding balance The
customer 1s liable for any remaining balance

Matunty profile of hire purchase recervables
The Company’s gross investment in hire purchase receivables s analysed in the table below

Present Carrying Present Carrying

value value value value

2008 2008 2007 2007

£000 £000 £'000 £'000

Within one year 333,841 431,156 277,180 399,584
One to five years 409,277 507,308 456,064 567,018
Over five years 54,381 65,293 22,737 27,544
797,499 1,003,757 755,981 994,146

Uneamed future finance mcome - (206,258) - (238,165)
Loan loss provision (339,347) (339,347) (172,815) (172,815)
Present value of future lease payments 458,152 458,152 583,166 583,166
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12 Loans and receivables (continued)

Maturity profile of hire purchase receivables (continued)

The Company provided hire purchase facilities to customers purchasing cars from Welcome Car Finance
Under the terms of the hire purchase agreements, no unguaranteed residual values are accruing to the Company
and no contingent rents are payable

Loan loss provision
The following tables provide an analysis of the movement in the Company’s loan loss provision during 2008 and 2007

2008 Welcome Shopacheck Total

£°000 £°'000 £000
At 1 January 2008 650,896 47,971 698,867
Utilised (167,841) (49,649} (217,490)
Recovenies of amounts previously written off 3,780 1,726 5,506

Charged to the income statement

Additional provisions created 741,084 56,163 797,247
Recoveries of amounts previcusly wriiten off (3,780) (1,726) {5,506}
Total loan loss charge 737,304 54,437 791,741
Loan loss provision at 31 December 2008 1,224,139 54,485 1,278,624
Restated Restated
2007 Welcome Shopacheck Total
£°000 £000 £7000
At 1 January 2007 451,546 34,558 486,104
Utihsed (181,709 (33,089) (214,798)
Recoveries of amounts previously wnitten off 13,048 1,240 14,288
Charged to the income statement
Additional provisions created 381,059 46,502 427,561
Recoveries of amounts previously written off (13,048) (1,240) (14,288)
Total loan loss charge 368,011 45,262 413,273
Loan loss provision at 31 December 2007 650,896 47,971 698,867
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13 Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the lrability method using a tax rate of 28 5%
(2007 30%)

The Company has not recognised a deferred tax asset of £187 9 million (2007 restated £18 5 mullion) in the
financial statements, as 1t 1s not considered likely that there wiil be suitable future taxable profits

Deferred tax assets have been recogmsed 1n respect of temporary differences giving nse to deferred tax assets
because 1t 1s probable that these assets will be recovered All of the deferred tax hability 1s available for offset

against deferred tax assets and hence the deferred tax asset at each balance sheet date 15 shown net

The movements n the deferred tax account are shown below

Accelerated
capital Other timing

allowances differences Total

£°000 £000 £000

At 1 January 2007 (2,099) 9,636 7,537
Recogmised in income (2,724) (1,814) (4,538)
Recogmsed in equity - 18 18
At 1 January 2008 (4,823) 7,840 3,017
Recognised n income 410 (1,010) (600)
Pnor year charge / (credit) 4,413 (6,229) (1,816)
Losses less unprovided - (601) (601}
Total credit / (charge) to income 4,823 (7,840) 3,017)

At 31 December 2008 - - -

Other timing differences principally relate to the temporary differences ansing from changes 1n accounting
policies following the transition to IFRS or share-based payments

14  Trade and other receivables

2008 2007

£7000 £7000

Trade receivables 1,950 3,926
Other recervables 4,900 24963
Prepayments and accrued income 2,813 7,925
9,663 36,814

An analysis of the arrears status of the Company’s trade recervables, prepayments and accrued income has not
been presented as the amount concerned 15 not material The Company’s other receivables are considered
nether past due nor impaired

The Company has no renegotiated trade and other receivables and does not hold any collateral 1n respect of its
trade and other recervables
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15 Borrowings

2008 2007
£000 £'000
Current

Overdrafts 5,771 9,957
External borrowings 830 779
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 3,864 1,784
Intra-group borrowings 2,959,549 2,443,700
2,970,614 2,456,220

Non-current
External borrowings 1,586 2,417
Obligations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts 6,303 3,366
7,889 5,783
Total borrowings 2,977,903 2,462,003

External borrowings relate to a fixed rate 6 39% loan, which 1s repayable 1n quarterly instalments by

September 2011

Intra-group borrowings include £n1l (2007 £35 3 milhon) 1n relation to a promissory note between the Company
and 1ts immediate parent undertaking, Cattles Holdings Limited, which was due to be settled on 9 May 2008
Except for the liability 1n relation to the promissory note, unsecured intra-group borrowings are subject to an
interest charge based on the average cost of borrowing borne by the Company’s ultimate parent undertaking,

Cattles, plus an appropnate margm

16  Trade and other payables

2008 2007
£000 £°000
Current

Trade payables 16,876 16,557
Other taxes and social security 6,383 5,504
Other payables 355 975
Accruals 17,892 18,796
41,506 41,832

Non-current
Other payables - 7.414
Total trade and other payables 41,506 49,246

All trade payables have a maturnity of within one month

An analysis of the contractual matunity of the Company’s other taxes and social secunty habilities and other
payables has not been presented as the amount 15 not material 1n the context of the Company’s total habihities
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17 Provisions

2008 2007
£°000 £7000
Current
Property dilapidations 638 -
Other provisions 15,840 -
16478 -
Non-current
Property dilapidations 1,573
Other provisions 78,060 -
79,633 -
Total provisions 96,111 -

Property dilapidations relate to the estimated future cost of rectifying dilapidations for the leasehold properties
occupied by the Company The provision 15 expected to be utilised within four years from the balance sheet

date These costs had previously been recognised by the Company’s ultimate parent, Cattles

Other provisions have been recognised in 2008 and relate to the estimation of potential future costs ansing as a

result of certan product sales  As permmitted by LAS 37 paragraph 92 certamn disclosures required by that

standard have not been provided
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18 Finanecial instruments

The Company holds no denvatives and has not identified any embedded derivatives which require separate
accounting for in accordance with IAS 39 ‘Financial instruments Recognition & measurement’

The following tables set out the carrying value of the Company’s financial assets and liabtlities in accordance
with the categories of financial instruments set cut 1n 1AS 39 Assets outside the scope of IAS 39 are shown
within non-financial assets / habihhes

Non-
financial
2008 Loans and Amortised assets /
receivables cost Lhabilities Total
£°000 £000 £°000 £7000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets - - 1,§36 1,136
Property, plant and equipment - - 14,792 14,792
Loans and recervables 1,066,625 - - 1,066,625
1,066,625 - 15,928 1,082,553
Current assets
Inventories - - 6,999 6,999
Loans and receivables 1,198,209 - - 1,198,209
Current tax assets - - 84,237 84,237
Trade and other receivables 4,763 - 4,900 9,663
Cash and cash equivalents 18,421 - - 18,421
1,221,393 - 96,136 1,317,529
Total assets 2,288,018 - 112,064 2,400,082
LIABILITIES
Current habilities
Borrowings - 2,970,014 - 2,970,014
Trade and other payables - 35,122 6,384 41,506
Deferred income - 33,083 - 33,083
Provisions - - 16,478 16,478
- 3,038,219 22,862 3,061,081
Non-current habilities
Borrowings - 7,889 - 7,389
Preference shares - 36,009 - 36,009
Deferred income - 29,449 - 29,449
Provisions - - 79,633 79,633
- 73,347 79,633 152,980
Total liabilities - 3,111,566 102,495 3,214,061

42




Welcome Financial Services Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2008

(continued)

18 Financial instruments (continued)

Non-
financial
2007 Loans and Amortised assets /
recelvables cost habihitzes Total
£000 £000 £°000 £°000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Other intangible assets - - 5,827 5,827
Property, plant and equipment - - 11,818 11,818
Loans and receivables 1519 666 - - 1,519,666
Deferred tax assets - - 3,017 3,017
1,519,666 - 20,662 1,540,328
Current assets
Inventones - - 12,591 12,591
Loans and receivables 913,906 - - 913,906
Current tax assets - - 76,415 76,415
Trade and other receivables 11,851 - 24,963 36,814
Cash and cash equivalents 11,240 - - 11,240
936,997 - 113,969 1,050,966
Total assets 2,456,663 - 134,631 2,591,294
LIABILITIES
Current habibties
Borrowings - 2,456,220 - 2,456,220
Trade and other payables - 36,328 5,504 41,832
Deferred income - 27,544 - 27,544
- 2,520,092 5,504 2,525,596
Non-current habilities
Borrowings - 5,783 - 5,783
Trade and other payables - 7414 - 7414
Preference shares - 36,009 - 36,009
Deferred income - 45,800 - 45,800
- 95,006 - 95,006
Total habilities - 2,615,098 5,504 2,620,602

Fair values of non-derivative financial instruments
The following table summarises the carrying values and fair values of those financial instruments not
recognised in the balance sheet at fair value, except for those financial instruments (beng intra-group loans and
advances, intra-group borrowings, trade and other receivables, cash and bank balances, bank overdrafis, trade
and other payables, preference shares and obhigations under finance leases and hire purchase contracts) whose
carrying values approximate to their fair values The fair value of loans and receivables 1s disclosed m note 12

2008 2007
Carrymng Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
£000 £'000 £°000 £°000
Extemnal borrowings 2,416 2,422 3,196 3,205

The fair value of external borrowings 15 calculated by discounting expected future cash flows Expected future
cash flows are derived using the borrowing’s fixed interest rate
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19 Share capital

a) Ordinary share capital

Authonsed
2008 2007
Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000,000 100,000 100,000,000 100,000
Ordinary shares of 1p each 1,004,500 10 1,004,500 10
101,004,500 100,010 101,004,560 100,010
Allotted, called up and fully paxd
2008 2007
Number £000 Number £000
Ordinary shares of £1 each 100,000,600 100,000 100,000,000 100,000
Ordmary shares of 1p each 499,500 5 499,500 5
100,499,500 100,005 100,499,500 100,005

The rnights attached to the ordinary shares are as follows

Yoting

On a show of hands every ordinary shareholder who 1s present in person at a general meeting of the Company
and every proxy appoimted by an ordinary shareholder and present at a general meeting of the Company shall
have one vote and on a poll every ordinary shareholder who 15 present in person or by proxy shall have one vote

for every share held

Dwvidends

Subject to the preferential rights attaching to the “A”, “B” and sirredeemable preference shares, ordinary

shareholders shalt be entitled to recerve such dividend as the Company by ordinary resolution may from time to
time declare as a final dividend (such dividend not to exceed the amount recommended by the Board) or as the
Board may from time to time declare as an intenm dividend

Return of capital on a winding-up
Subject to the preferential nghts attaching to the “A”, “B” and irredeemnable preference shares, ordinary

shareholders are entitled to participate in any surplus assets on the winding-up of the Company n proportion to

their shareholdings
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19 Share capital (continued)

b) Preference share capital

Authorised Allottegl,]::;lll];?dup and
Number of shares 2008 2007 2008 2007
“A” preference shares of 1p each 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000 10,000,000
“B” preference shares of 1p each 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000 25,000,000
Irredeemable preference shares of 1p each 150,000,000 150,000,000 78,477,202 78,477,202

185,000,000 185,000,000 113,477,202 113,477,202

2008 2007
Carrying Nominal Carrying Nominal
Allotted, called up and fully paid value value value value
£000 £°000 £'000 £'000
“A™ preference shares of 1p each 100 100 100 100
“B” preference shares of 1p each 250 250 250 250
Irredeemable preference shares of 1p each 35,659 785 35,659 785
36,009 1,135 36,009 1,135

The nghts attached to the preference shares are as follows

The “A” and “B” preference shares have the following rights

To receive first out of profits a cumulative dividend at the rate of six-month sterling LIBOR per annum
on the amount paid up as to nominal value on each “A” or “B”, as applicable, preference share,

In a winding-up, to recerve repayment of capital as to nominal value and any unpaid and accrued
dividends 1n preference to all other classes of share, and

No night to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company, except where a resclufion 15 to

be proposed

Abrogating, varying or medifying any of the nghts of the holders of the “A” or “B”, as applicable,
preference shares, or

In respect of a winding up of the Company, or

If any “A” or “B”, as applicable, preference dividend has been declared but not paid

The irredeemable preference shares have the following rights

To receive second out of profits a cumulative preferential dividend equal to twelve-month sterling
LIBOR plus 4 68% multiphed by £1 00, paid annually in arrears,

In a winding-up, to receive repayment of capital as to nommal value, any unpaid dividends and a
further £0 99 per uredeemable preference share mn preference to all classes of share other than the “A”™
and “B” preference shares, and

No right to attend and vote at general meetings of the Company
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20 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share option schemes

The ultimate parent Company, Cattles, has a number of option schemes, being the Cattles Executive Share
Option Scheme (1994), the Cattles Executive Share Option Scheme (1996) and the Cattles Employee Sharesave
Scheme Cattles 1ssued new shares through a nghts 1ssue on 5 June 2008 The nghts 1ssue resulted 1n a
restatement of the exercise prices and the number of shares under option n respect of the Executive Share
Option Schemes and Employee Sharesave Scheme This restatement has been reflected in the tables below

Dunng 2008 Cattles granted new options under the Employee Sharesave Scheme, which gave employees who
were members of the 2005 and 2007 Schemes the option to cancel their existing savings contracts and take out a
savings contract in the 2008 Scheme These replacement options were accounted for as a modification as set
out in the accounting policy on share-based payments

Certain employccs, including Directors, of the Company have outstanding options under these schemes as at
31 December 2008 as follows

Restated Restated
Exercise price Exercise 2008 2007
Period granted (pence) period Number Number

Executive Share Option Schemes
1999 30931-31154 2002 — 2009 41,351 69,385
2000 188 40 2003 - 2010 584 584
2001 189 68 — 241 30 2004 - 2011 15,185 15,185
2002 284 10 2005 — 2012 4,672 4,672
61,792 89,826

Employee Sharesave Scheme

2003 244 47 2008 — 2009 210,205 317,854
2005 20817 2010 - 2011 153,040 626,986
2007 25525 2010 - 2011 87,086 431,689
2007 25525 2012 -2013 133,563 713,917
2008 46 60 2011 -2012 6,368,283 -
2008 46 60 2013 -2014 8,957,104 -

15,909,281 2,090,486

15,971,073 2,180,312
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The outstanding share options may be analysed by a range of exercise prices as follows

2008 2007
Restated Restated
Weighted Weighted Weighted Weighted
average average average average
Range of exercise remaining exercise remaining
exercise prices price hfe price Restated life
{pence) (pence) Number (years) (pence) Number (years)
46 60 - 149 00 46.60 15,325,387 4.58 - - -
150 00— 199 00 189.25 1,752 2.26 189 25 1,752 326
200 00 —249 00 229.63 377,262 1.30 220 69 958,897 275
250 00 — 299 00 255.85 225321 3.62 255 37 1,150,278 4 66
3000031154 310.91 41,351 0.25 31041 69,385 125
54.58 15,971,073 4.48 241 81 2,180,312 371
The expected remaining life of the share options equates to their remamning contractual hfe
A reconcihation of option movements during the year 15 shown below
2008 2007
Weighted
Weighted average
average exercise
exercise price price
Number (pence) Number {pence}
Outstanding at 1 January 2,180,312 241.81 1,070,061 264 84
Granted 15,502,468 46.60 994,389 298 20
Exercised - - (75,788) 263 92
Expired (1,711,707) 220.84 (122,117 230 68
Outstanding at 31 December 15,971,073 54.58 1,866,545 282 50
Outstanding at 31 December (as restated) 2,180,312 241 81
Exercisable at 31 December 271,997 254.73 76,500 345 68
Exercisable at 31 December (as restated} 89.826 29590

On 31 October 2008, 15,502,468 options (2007 994,389) were granted with an estimated fair value of £0 1 mullion

(2007 £0 4 milhon)

No opticns were exercised in the year The weighted average share price during 2007 for options exercised in

that year was 383p
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Shares 1ssued under senior executive long-term 1mncentive plans and staff Share Incentive Plan
The ultimate parent Company also has a number of long-term incentive plans for senior executives, including
the Directors of the Company Details of each plan are set out in the financial statements of Cattles

Excluding the current Directors who are compensated by another Company, during the year 682,673 shares
(2007 391,720 shares) with an estimated fair value of £0 6 milhon (2007 £1 3 milhon) were awarded to senior
executives under the long-term incentive plans

The ultimate parent Company also operates a Share Incentive Plan, which 1s open to all eligible UK employees
of the Company, and ts an HMRC-approved all-employee scheme During the year 1,295,182 shares (2007
505,691 shares) with an estimated fair value of £1 8 million (2007 £1 6 million) were awarded to the
Company’s cmployces under the Share Incentive Plan

Fair value of share-based payments

The fair values of all share-based payments arising from share awards granted post 7 November 2002 have been
estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model The assumptions used 1n the calculations are set out 1n
the financial statements of Cattles

The Company recognised a total charge of £n1l (2007 £1 9 milhon) relating to equity-settled share-based payment
transactions during the year

21 Reconciliation of loss before taxation to cash outflow from operations

Restated
2008 2007
£°000 £000
Loss before taxation (746,432) (94,975)
Adjustments for
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 8,071 6,181
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment (403) (125)
Loss on disposal of intangible assets 234 -
Amortisation of intangible assets 8,877 4,046
Impairment of mtangible assets 10377 72,709
Preference share finance credit - (1,310)
Share-based payments - 1,895
Decrease / (increase) in loans and receivables 60,481 (506,185)
Decrease / (increase) 1n nventones 5,592 (5,439)
Decrease / (increase) in trade and other receivables 27,151 (1,300)
(Decrease) 1n deferred income (10,812) (8,395)
(Decrease) / increase in trade and other payables (7,740) 14,278
Increase in provisions 96,111 -
Cash outflow from operations (548,493) (518,620)

The amount of interest paid and received during the year was £180 8 miilion (2007 £142 5 million) and £3 7 mullion
(2007 £2 8 mulhion) respectively

The amount of preference dividends paid duning the year was £ml (2007 £7 6 million}
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22 Pension obhgations

The Company ts a member of a Group which operates both a defined benefit pension scheme and defined
contnbution pension plans

Defined benefit post-employment benefits plan

The defined benefit scheme provides benefits based on final salary for certain of the Company’s employees
The assets of the scheme are held 1n a separate trustee-admemistered fund Contnibutions to the scheme are

assessed 1n accordance with the advice of an independent qualified actuary using the projected umt method
The scheme was closed to new applicants from 1998

The retirement benefit obligation 1s recognised in the balance sheet of the sponsonng employer, the ultimate parent
Company The Company’s staff cost for the year ended 31 December 2008 1n relation to the defined benefit
scheme represents the proportion of the employer contnbuttons payable of £2 0 mithon (2007 £3 t mulhon)

Further details on the valuation of the total retirement benefit obligation, including the assumptions upon which
the valuation 15 based, are set out 1n the financial statements of Cattles

Defined contribution post-employment benefit plans
The staff cost recognised for the year ended 31 December 2008 n relation to defined contnbution plans 1s £1 0
mitlion (2007 £0 8 million)

23 Operating lease arrangements

At the balance sheet date the Company had total future lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
as follows

2008 2007

Land and Motor Land and Motor
buildings vehicles buildings vehicles
£000 £000 £000 £'000

Future lease payments
Within one year 5,280 3,060 4,749 2,555
Between one and five years 10,275 3,987 7,867 3,003
After five years 2,246 - 2,864 -
17,801 7,047 15,480 5,558

The following lease payments were recogmised in the income statement during the year
Lease payments 7,222 5,113 7,873 4,628
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24  Financial risk management

Management of credit risk

The Company acknowledges that the nsk ansing from changes in credit quality and the recoverability of loans
ts inherent 1 the nature of 1ts business Adverse changes in customers’ credit quality ansing from a general
deterioration 1n economic conditions 1n the UK, such as higher interest rates, higher unemployment levels or
house price reductions, could affect the recoverability and value of the Company’s loans and receivables

The Cattles Board sets standards for credit nsk management throughout the Group This 1s achieved through a
combination of governance structures, credit nsk policies and credit systems and processes The Company’s
executive management determines credit policy within the appetite set by the Cattles Board by considering and
authonsing recommendations proposed by the Credit Commuttee, which 1s responsible for evaluating credit
policy and product profitability Oversight 1s provided by the Risk Commttee

The Company’s principal protections against credit nisk are its credit scoring and underwnting processes

The nisk from a concentration of customer credit nisk 15 imited due to the relatively low value of each
customer’s debt and to the Company’s large customer base

In the Company’s Shopacheck business, credit nsk 1s managed through regular analysis of customers’ ability to
make repayments, and their credit himits are amended accordingly Dunng 2008, credit risk management was
enhanced through the introduction of scorecards

Liquidity risk - borrowings
The contractual maturities of the Company’s borrowings, including both capital and interest payments, are
analysed below The amounts shown, therefore, do not reconcile to the Company’s balance sheet

On Upto3 3-12 1-2 2-3 3-4 4-5

2008 demand months  months years years years years Total

£°000 £'000 £'000 £000 £°000 £000 £000 £000
Bank overdrafts 5,771 - - - - - - 5,771
Other borrowings - 242 724 965 724 - - 2,655
Obligations under - 1,655 4,965 6,139 1,988 93 9 14,849
finance leases and
hire purchase
contracts
Intra-group 2,959,549 - - - - - - 2,959,549
borrowings
Total 2,965,320 1,897 5,689 7,104 2,712 93 9 2,982,824
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Liquidity risk — borrowings {continued)

On Upto3 3-12 1-2 23 34 4-5
2007 demand months  months years years years years Total
£°000 £'000 £°000 £000 £000  £000  £000 £000
Bank overdrafis 9,957 - - - - - - 9.957
Other borrowings - 257 755 965 965 724 - 3,666
Obligations under
finance leases and ; 53 1324 1,778 1238 744 - 5,622
htre purchase
contracts
[ntra-group 2,408 400 - 35300 ; . ; - 2,443,700
borrowings
Total 2,418,357 795 37379 2,743 2,203 1,468 - 2,462,945
The Company’s gross obligations under finance lease and hire purchase contracts are as foltows
2008 2007
£000 £000
Gross lease payments
Not later than one year 4,302 1,862
Later than one year but not more than five 7,018 3,760
11,320 5,622
Future finance charges (1,153) (472)
Present value of minimum lease payments 10,167 5,150

The above figures relate to motor vehicles acquired under hire purchase contracts and computer hardware

acquired under finance leases

Liquidity risk — obligatiens under operating lease contracts
The matunty profiles of the contractual cash flows associated with the Company’s operating leases are

analysed below

Upto3l 3-12 1-2 2-3 34 4-5 Over
months  months years years years years 5 years Total
£’000 £000 £°000 £°000 £000 £000 £°000 £000
2008 2,490 5,850 6,072 4,128 2,553 1,508 2,246 24,847
2007 2,124 5,179 4,889 3,120 1,770 1,691 2,864 21,037

Management of liquidity risk

Liquidity nisk 1s the nsk to earnings or capital anising from an mability to meet obligattons when they become
due, without incurnng unexpected or unacceptable losses It includes the risk of inability to manage unplanned
decreases or changes 1n funding sources and also any failure to recognise and address changes 1n market
conditions that could affect the Company’s abihity to hquidate assets quickly, with mimimum value loss, 1f

necessary
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Management of hquidity rnisk (continued)

The majonty of the Company’s borrowings are ntra-group borrowings, repayable on demand from Cattles, the
Company’s ultimate parent Company As set out in statement of accounting policies, Cattles has no current
intention of demanding repayment of these borrowings

Management of interest rate risk

The Group’s nsk management programme aims to limit adverse external impacts on financial performance by
using financial instruments such as mterest rate and cross-currency swaps to fix interest rates and hedge foreign
currency denominated borrowings

25 Contingent liabilities

The Company, together with other companies in the Cattles Group, has entered into an unsecured multilateral
bank puarantee There are no fair values attached to the guarantee

The Company 15 a partictpating member of the Cattles Group defined benefit scheme The Company has a

contingent liability n respect of the deficit on the pension scheme of £15 0 million as at 31 December 2008
(2007 £14 1 million) as the Company 1s, with other participating companies, contrtbuting towards the lump
sum deficit payments being made to the scheme by Cattles plc

26 Related party transactions

Ultimate parent undertaking
The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party of the Company 1s Cattles, registered 1n England and
Wales

The largest and smallest Group 1n which the results of the Company are consolidated 1s that headed by Cattles
The consolidated financial statements of this Group will be available to the public and may be obtained from the
registered office, Kingston House, Centre 27 Business Park, Woodhead Road, Birstall, Batley, WF17 9TD

Related party transactions

During the year the Company entered into a number of related party transactions with its ultimate and
immediate parent comparues and its fellow subsidiary undertakings, as outhined below in the narrative and the
following table

. The Company recerved borrowing factlities from its ultimate parent Company, for which a financing
charge was levied each month  This charge was based upon the ultimate parent’s average cost of
borrowing

. The Company entered into a loan arrangement and promissory note to advance monies to 1ts immediate

parent Company

. The Company employed the services of a fellow subsidiary undertaking for certain debt collection
activities for which a fee was levied This fee was derived on an arm’s length basis

. The Company paid a management fee to the ultimate parent Company 1n relation 1o receiving certain
central services, such as internal audit This management fee was calculated on a cost incurred basis

. The Company levied management charges for the provision of IT services to the ultimate parent
Company and a fellow subsidiary undertaking The charges were calculated on a cost incurred basis

. The Company’s main office was rented from a fellow subsidiary undertaking at a market-based rent

. The Company adminmstered the payroll of the Cattles Group Payroll costs were recharged to the
ultimate parent Company and fellow Group compames The Company did not make any charge for
providing these services
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2008 2007

£000 £°000

Promissory note to advance montes (note 15) - 35,300

Debt collection charges 3,148 1,815

Management fee — central services 350 307

Management charge — IT services 850 551

Office rental 702 622
Related party supphers

Hammonds LLP 8 -

Brilhant Media Limited 12,735 10,803

Receivables due from and payables to the ultimate and immediate parent companies and fellow subsidiary
undertakings are disclosed 1n notes 12 and 15 respectively

Close relatives of certain Group and Company Directors D A Haxby, F R Dee and J J Corr worked for the
supphers to the Company Amounts paid to these suppliers are set out 1n the above table as related party
suppliers Amounts included n trade and other payables (note 16) in respect of the related party supphers were
Hammonds LLP £6,002 (2007 £ml) and Brilhant Media Limited £38,532 (2007 £306,570)

Key management compensation

2008 2007

£°000 £7000

Short-term employee benefits 1,402 2,040
Post-employment benefits 181 181
Share-based payments - 549
1,583 2,770

Key management are the Directors of the Company and members of the Company’s management Board
Excluding the Directors, as at 31 December 2008, who are compensated by another Company, 1,384,978 shares
were notionally held in respect of key management at 31 December 2008 (2007 572,313) Dunng the year
682,673 shares (2007 391,720 shares) with an estimated fair value of £0 6 million (2007 £1 3 million) were
awarded to key management under these schemes
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On 7 January 2009, Cattles announced that m hight of the continuing uncertain funding environment, new
business volumes in Welcome 1n 2009 would be reduced by some 75% on 2008 and collective consultation had
begun with employees over a reduction of around 1,000 jobs within the Group Annualised cost savings were
estimated at £40 million and the Group costs of delivenng these savings are expected to be £20 million

On 10 March 2009, Cattles, the Company’s ultimate parent Company, announced that, based on information
recerved to that date, and subject to completion of 1ts external audit, it believed that a sigmficant loss before tax
had been incurred for the year ended 31 December 2008, and that 1t would be necessary to restate the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 Cattles also reported on 10 March 2009 that it
believed 1t was i breach of covenants under its borrowing arrangements

On | Apnl 2009, Cattles announced that a report by Deloitte estimated that the Group would need to make a
provision of around £700 million i excess of that ongirally anticipated with respect to the value of customer
loans held as at 31 December 2008 At that date, the amount of this provision that should be reflected in the
profit and loss account for the year ended 31 December 2008 versus earlier years still remained to be
determined However, the Cattles Board believed that such a provision would result in the Group reporting a
significant loss before tax for the year ended 31 December 2008 and in the requirement to restate the Group’s
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007

On 1 Apnl 2009, the Cattles Board also reported that 1t was considering whether to inciude an addittonal IBNR
provision consistent with accounting standard IAS39 Based on work carned out to that date, the Cattles Board
believed that the adoption of such a policy would result in an IBNR impairment provision of approximately
£150 milhon with respect to the value of customer loans held as at 31 December 2008

On 30 Aprl 2009, the Company closed its car retail operation, Welcome Car Finance

On 2 September 2009, Cattles announced the closure of 30 Welcome branches to better align the network with
reduced levels of lending and deliver efficiencies in lime with Cattles” commitment 1o manage the business
through cost-efficient operations and improved cash collection processes 510 employees received notice that
they were at nsk of redundancy and subsequently 266 left the business

On 29 October 2009, the High Court of Justice heard the application of Cattles to seek a determination 1n
relation to whether the terms contained within certain cross-guarantee documentation operate to subordinate the
Company’s claims aganst 1ts subsidianes, including the Company, to the claims of certain bank creditors This
apphication was brought as part of consensual discussions between all parties On 14 December 2009, the High
Court delivered a decision that interpreted the cross-guarantee documentation to mean that the Company will be
prevented from making claims aganst relevant trading company subsidiaries for money lent until the claims of
the relevant bank creditors against those subsidharies and the Company have been satisfied n full After
Judgment was handed down permussion was sought to appeal this decision to the Court of Appeal The High
Court granted such permission to the Royal Bank of Scotland pk and Party A (being a representative member of
the Bondholders) The Court of Appeal hearing 1s presently listed for 12 or 13 May 2010

On 25 November 2009, Cattles announced that 1t had agreed a formal SEA with 1ts key financial creditors At

the same time, Cattles also agreed certain modifications to the terms of its bank facilities, private placement
notes and, subsequently, its bonds
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The signing of the SEA and these modifications was expected to improve the likehihood of Cattles achieving its
restructuring objectives, namely

= to stabilise the financial position of Cattles and its subsidianies, and
* agaist this background, to continue discussions with Cattles' key financial creditors with a view to
agreemng a consensual restructuning of the Group

The SEA was signed by Cattles, the Company, certain other members of the Cattles Group and, among others,
lenders of certain syndicated and bilateral facilities to Cattles (Banks), certain guaranteed hedging
counterparties (Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties), certain unguaranteed hedging counterparties
(Ungnaranteed Hedging Counterparties) and holders of certain pnivate placement notes 1ssued by Cattles
(Noteholders)

The SEA became effective on 17 December 2009 (the Effective Date) following the formal approval of the
amendments to the bonds by holders of Cattles® 2014 and 2017 bonds (Bondholders)

The key provisions of the SEA include

¢ Standstill* A formal agreement by the key financial creditors to "stand still" and therefore agree not to
take enforcement action agamst Cattles, the Company or other members of the Group for a lumited period
of ume

+ Cash distributions: Obligations on the Company to distribute the majonty of cash generated by the
Group to the key financial creditors, subject to the right of the Company to forecast and retain a
provision for working capital requirements and other contingencies The SEA expressly provides that
this forecast will be prepared on a conservative basis to provide ongoing liquidity for the Group

» Cash management: Obligations on Cattles, the Company and other members of the Group to ensure
that the majonty of cash generated by the Group, which 1s currently subject to nghts of set off in
favour of certain key financial creditors, continues to be maintained 1n bank accounts that are subject to
such nghts of set off in favour of such key financial creditors

The period of standstill 1s hnked to the itigation process relating to certain intra Group subordination
arrangements (as set out 1n Cattles’ announcement of 11 August 2009) (the Lingation) The Banks, the
Notehelders and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties are required to stand still dunng an initial standstill
penod from (and including) the Effective Date and ending on the earlier of

(1) 30 June 2011,

(n) the date on which the relative entitlements of the creditors to Interim Distributions paid after the
conclusion of the Litigation have been finally determined by the Entity Pnonty Accountant, and

(11) the occurrence of the date on which the SEA 1s terminated,

unless the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties whose claims against the Group represent at least
75% of the aggregate claims of the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties against the Group and the
Noteholders whose claims agamst the Group represent at least 73% of the aggregate claims of the Noteholders
against the Group decide that the standstll applicable to the Banks and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties
and the Noteholders should be terminated

During the period after 30 June 2011 or after the date on which the relative entitlements of the creditors to
Interim Distnbuttons paid after the conclusion of the Litigation have been finally determmed by the Entity
Prionty Accountant, the standstill can be terrminated (1) in the case of the standstill applicable to the Banks and
Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties, by the Banks and Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties whose claims
against the Group represent at least 75% of the aggregate claims of the Banks and Guaranteed Hedging
Counterparties against the Group, and (1) in the case of the Noteholders, by the Noteholders whose claims
against the Group represent at least 75% of the aggregate claims of the Noteholders agamst the Group
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With respect to the Bondholders and the Unguaranteed Hedging Counterparties, the mitial standstill period
(which began on the Effective Date) has been extended following the appeal of the first instance judgement to
the Court of Appeal The Court of Appeal hearing 1s presently hsted for 12 or 13 May 2010 There will be a
further automatic extension of such standstill period following any appeal of the Court of Appeal judgement,
provided that a relevant majority of the Banks, the Noteholders and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties
agree that the Company shall fund the legal costs of any appeal (up to a maxamum amount of £1,500,000) The
standstill period for the Bondholders and the Unguaranteed Hedging Counterparties shall terminate where (1) a
relevant majority of the Banks, the Noteholders and the Guaranteed Hedging Counterparties do not agree that
the Company shall fund such costs, or (1) the SEA 1s terminated

On 16 December 2009, Cattles anncunced that 1t was unable to recommend a business plan to financial creditors
which would allow Welcome to lend to existing or new customers The Cattles Board therefore recomimended a
plan which weould focus on collecting out Welcome’s customer loans It 1s envisaged that the collection of the
Welcome loan book could take two to three years and, during this period, the Group’s cost base will contract to
reflect the reducing size of the book

On 5 February 2010, Cattles announced the closure of circa 70 Local Management Branches and Local
Collections Units nationwide The Company entered into a consuitation process from that date with staff
affected by the proposals, of whom approximately 450 received notice that they were at nisk of redundancy and
subsequently 382 will leave the business

On 7 May 2010, Cattles announced a proposal to close 18 branches nationwide and a contraction mn the current
operations management and their support staff in line with the smaller number of branches The Company
entered into a consultation process from that date, with staff affected by the proposals, of whom approxmmately
155 received notice that they were at risk of redundancy
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